AHRQ-07-10033
Patient Safety Organization Network of Patient Safety Databases

The purpose of this amendment is to:

1. Respond to questions received concerning the solicitation  (see below)

2. Provide a list of potential offerors  (see below)

3. Change the requirement concerning the number and format of the technical proposals to be submitted.  For the technical proposal, we require an original and 10 hard copies plus 2 electronic copies on CD of the 125-page proposal.  For attachments to the technical proposal, we require an original and 2 hardcopies plus 10 electronic copies on CD.
4. The date for receipt of proposals and performance evaluation questionnaires remains Monday, July 9, 2007, at 12:00 noon.

NPSD questions

1.
Is AHRQ strictly interested only in reducing medical errors or also in reporting and potentially reducing patient adverse events? 

AHRQ is interested in both reducing medical errors and in reducing patient adverse events and near misses.  Hence, the NPSD should be prepared to receive all types of patient safety information including medical errors leading to an adverse event, close calls, and adverse events not associated with a specific error.

2. What are AHRQ’s preferred methods for transmitting data to the NPSD?

Data received must be de-identified and provided in the common formats that AHRQ will be making available for patient safety event reporting.  The PSO PPC will be able to provide technical assistance to PSOs to de-identify patient safety event data for the NPSD. It is envisioned that all or most information submitted to the NPSD will be in an electronic format.  The NPSD should be prepared to work with the PSO PPC and other sources of information to identify methods of transmitting data that are compliant with federal and DHHS standards.

3. Page 21, section 4.2 Develop Interactive, Evidence-based Management Resource for Partner PSOs of the RFP states: “The Contractor shall provide and support all hardware necessary to host and connect to the resource. The Government reserves the option to host the databases and Web sites and provide access to the Internet.”  What do you view as the likely balance of hosting responsibilities between AHRQ and the Contractor? 

We anticipate that the interactive, evidence-based management resource will be primarily hosted by the Contractor, and that AHRQ websites will point to this resource.

4. What is the earliest possible time following the effective date of the contract (EDOC) when data would be received by the NPSD? When does AHRQ anticipate the initial transfer of non-identifiable information from the PSOPPC to the NPSD?

It is not possible to specify the likely timing of initial information flow with any accuracy.  The timing is a function of when PSOs seek to become certified and begin to submit information, and these factors are dependent on elements outside of AHRQ’s control.  However, we project that the earliest time that information could flow to the NPSD would be the summer of 2008.

5.
In Section 2.2.1. Entitled: “Execute Contracts with PSOs” the text states “This is AHRQ's equivalent to Joint Operating or Data Use Agreements.  For PSOs that choose to submit information directly to the NPSD, it is anticipated that individual agreements will be needed.  The agreement formalizes PSO participation by specifying the rights and responsibilities of the PSO and of the NPSD.  The agreement specifies that the PSO will render information non-identifiable and consistent with Common Formats for submission to the NPSD”. Question: Could the wording for this contract, be similar to a standard “Data Use Agreement”, used in other areas of HHS? 

Yes, we anticipate that the contracts would include language similar to standard data use agreements specifying responsibilities of the PSO and of the NPSD regarding data security, acceptable uses, and applicable restrictions on use of the submitted information.

6.
In Section 2.2.2. Entitled, “Receive Non –identifiable information from PSO’s, the text states: “The Contractor shall make arrangements to receive information from PSOs who choose to submit information directly to the NPSD along with related documentation.  Transfer of information, whether electronic or physical, shall ensure that data confidentiality and security are optimally protected.  The Contractor shall review the information to ensure that it is consistent with the documentation”. Question:  Since the Common Format is not completed, will AHRQ be providing the necessary information to facilitate consistent file transfer to the network contract for the databases.

Yes, the Common Formats will be made available to PSOs for use in submitting information to the PSO PPC and NPSD.  In addition, the PSO PPC will provide technical assistance to PSOs in the use of the Common Formats.  

7.
Section 1.4.4, Convene Ad Hoc Panels of Experts (Page 17): "Upon request from AHRQ, the Contractor shall identify and propose individuals to advise and provide feedback on specific activities of the NPSD." For planning and budgeting purposes, please provide more detail on what AHRQ envisions for the scope and frequency of these panels. For instance, how many panels are AHRQ likely to require? How often might they be required? Will multiple panels be required at the same time? How much lead time will the contractor be given to convene the panels? Please clarify cost assumptions for the expert panel meetings, as discussed under Section 1.4.4, for example, how many meetings per year, expected number of non-Federal experts to attend, etc.

AHRQ reserves the right to request the Contractor to convene an ad hoc expert panel when specific problems/concerns are identified that are best addressed by the work of an expert panel.  In these circumstances, AHRQ would not expect the topic focused expert panel to require meeting more than two times a year. Most likely there would not be multiple panels meeting during the same calendar year.  The contractor would be given lead time of at least 2 months.  Expert panels will usually be less than 12 members in size (not including AHRQ staff).  For planning purposes, offerors should assume two panels per year consisting of 12 individuals-3 federal and 9 non-federal.  

8. In reference to the fact that an organization can apply for both contracts, but receive only one (Section C), can an organization submit a proposal as a prime contractor on one and subcontractor on another and receive an award for the first as prime as well as the second as subcontractor?  


No, an organization can do work for the PSO PPC or the NPSD but not both.  An organization could not be the prime contractor on one and subcontractor on the other.

9. In reference to Item B4 (11), the RFP indicates that Information Technology hardware and software are unallowable as direct costs.  This appears to conflict with several sections of the RFP’s Statement of Work, including the technical requirements specified in Section 1.2.3 and the statement that “The contractor shall deliver documentation of all proposed hardware, software, security, backup/recovery, networking, and other Information Technology (IT) infrastructure components and solutions needed to support all contractual efforts and will obtain approval of the proposed solutions from the Project Officer.” Please confirm that hardware and software costs are allowable under this project.

Hardware and software costs approved by the Project Officer are allowable under this contract.

10. Section 1.2.1 states that, "The contractor shall use AHRQ's Rational ClearCase for configuration management of all baselined documentation and source code."  Is Rational ClearCase specifically required, or would an equivalent commercial off-the-shelf product suffice?

An equivalent commercial off-the-shelf product may be used.  Regardless of the product used, a copy of all documentation and source code needs to be provided to the Project Officer. 
11. With regards to the use of Rational ClearCase for Configuration Management, the proposal implies that the contractor needs to use archives housed at AHRQ (in reference to Section 1.21).  Will the contractor need to use AHRQ’s archives or create its own archives?  If AHRQ’s archives are used, then the security arrangements become more complicated.

The Contractor can create its own archives.  AHRQ will archive materials in the AHRQ archive when documentation and source code are delivered.
12. What is the FIPS security classification for this system?  We are assuming it will be assigned a moderate classification but we will need to know in order to properly address the Security Plan sections of the proposal.

While it is important that NPSD information be held securely, all information received by the NPSD will be non-identifiable.  Hence, we assess the system as an overall low classification.
13. To help ensure that all offerors share a common set of assumptions when preparing proposals, can AHRQ provide any guidance on the anticipated costs or level of effort (i.e. FTEs) for the required work?

AHRQ expects the NPSD to cost between $1 million and $2 million per year during the first three years without the technical assistance option.  AHRQ expects the technical assistance option to cost between $500,000 and $1 million per year.

14. Recognizing that there is uncertainty in the reporting preferences of PSOs, and to help ensure that all offerors share a common set of assumptions when preparing proposals, can AHRQ provide any guidance about what to assume concerning the percentage of PSOs that will choose to bypass the PSOPPC and report directly to the NPSD?


It is not possible to estimate the numbers of PSOs that will choose to submit information directly to the NPSD.  AHRQ will encourage PSOs to use the PSO PPC.  In addition, because the PSO PPC will work with PSOs to de-identify information and provide other technical assistance, we believe that most PSOs will want to work with the PSO PPC.  For planning purposes, offerors should assume that 75% of PSOs choose to work with the PSO PPC and 25% choose to submit information directly to the NPSD.

15. When does AHRQ anticipate releasing the Common Format for reporting safety events?

We anticipate that Common Formats will made available  in early 2008.

16. Please clarify the inconsistency in the anticipated number and timing of certified PSOs between the NPSD RFP (page 8) and the PSOPPC RFP (page 9).

PSO PPC: For budgeting purposes, the offeror should assume that 60 PSOs are certified in the first two years of the program, with 40 certified in the first year and an additional 20 certified in the second year.

NPSD: For budgeting purposes, the offeror should assume that 60 PSOs are certified in the first three years of the program.

For planning purposes, use the PSO PPC assumptions of 40 PSOs certified in the first year and 20 additional PSOs certified in the second year of the program.

17.
Does the NPSD need to report data received directly from PSOs or other organizations back to the PSOPPC, other than through the Interactive Evidence-based Management Resource for Partner PSOs?

No, we anticipate that the management resource will be the vehicle for partner PSOs to access NPSD information.  Reporting back to individual PSOs should not be necessary.

18. What is the role of the IOM in the review of the report on effective strategies for reducing medical errors and increasing patient safety?  Will the NPSD contractor be involved in back and forth with the IOM on the report and be expected to incorporate their suggestions into the report?

It is anticipated that AHRQ will write the draft report to include supporting data from the NPSD.  The IOM will review the draft report.  AHRQ will work with the IOM to incorporate any appropriate changes.  AHRQ will then produce the final report, again with supporting data from the NPSD.

19. In your evaluation of the proposal, will subcontractors indicated for unbudgeted tasks (5 & 6) be considered as contributing to meeting the targets for Small Businesses/Disadvantaged Businesses?  If so, how will this be calculated?

For the Small Business Subcontracting Plan, only the base is used for review.
For the Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan, all options will be added to the base for evaluation purposes and will be evaluated the same way as the base.
20. Is there an incumbent contractor or is this a new requirement?

This is a new requirement; there is no incumbent.
21. Ref. G.4(2), page 35.  Refers to cost-reimbursement and firm fixed-price task orders.  Does the government intend to issue task orders outside the scope of work listed in Section C, which will not be included in the estimates cost tables in Section B?

No.  The mention of task orders was an error.  
22. Ref. G.5, page 36.  Refers to limiting reimbursement to the rates and time periods covered by the negotiated agreements.  Is the Government referring to individual labor rates?  If so, where in the proposals should offerors submit the rates?
G.5 refers to indirect cost rates such as fringe benefits, overhead, G&A costs, etc., as negotiated with the cognizant contracting official.  

23. Ref. Section C, pp 7-30.  Does the Government require pricing delineated by tasks specified?

Yes.
24. In reference to Section 1.2.3, please provide a copy of AHRQ’s Draft Technical Reference Model (TRM).

Also, in reference to Section 1.2.3, please provide a copy of the documentation standards and development guidelines listed as contained in Appendix A.

In reference to Section 1.2.1, please provide a copy of AHRQ’s Configuration Management Plan.

Page 12, section 1.2.3 Technical Requirements of the RFP states:  The Contractor shall adhere to the documentation standards and development guidelines contained in Appendix A for all developed and deployed software products.”  Could you please provide Appendix A?

The IT guidelines are provided as attachments.
25. Are there any plans to publish a list of firms who submitted a Letter of Intent?

The following firms have agreed to have their names listed:

Apptis, Inc.

14155 Newbrook Drive

Chantilly, VA  20151

Adam Welsh, Director and Sr. VP

Adam.welsh@apptis.com
703-647-6261

Arnold Consultancy & Technology LLC

1 Penn Plaza – 36th Floor

New York, NY  10119

Renee Arnold, President & CEO 

Business Networks International, Inc.

Sudha Kailar-Mohan, Sr. VP, Business Development

Phone:  315-391-0716

www.bnetal.com
Special Note:  Would like to subcontract with a system integration company

Human Capital Consultants, LLC

8850 Stanford Boulevard, Suite 2300

Columbia, MD  21045

410-953-0003

www.HumanCapitalLLc.com
Milton Hall, President & CEO

Special Note:  8(a) Certified/Small Disadvantaged Business interested in serving as sub-contractor.  Team includes Master’s Level and above HealthCare Consultants

LM Federal Healthcare (LMFHC) Inc.

One Curie Court

Rockville, MD  20850

Tiffany Thornton, Sr. Contracts Administrator

Social & Scientific Systems, Inc.

Kevin Beverly, Sr. VP, Business Development and Corporate Strategy

KBeverly@s-3.com
301-628-3000

Westat

Rockville, MD

Veronica Nieva, VP

